DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To the Members of Vatika Limited,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the Sixteenth Annual Report of your Company, together with
the Audited Accounts for the year ended March 31, 2014.

FINANCIAL RESULTS AND FUTURE OUTLOOK

1. Your Company’s performance during the year as compared with that during the previous year is
summarized below :

(Rs. in Lacs) (Rs. in Lacs)
Revenue 164,846 117,526
Expenditure
Cost of sales 123200 84,382
Personnel Expenses 1710 1,491
Operating and other expenses 8368 6,730
Total 133278 92,603
Financial expenses 24637 17,370
Depreciation and Amortization 326 317
Total 24963 17,687
Other income 2521 929
Tax expense 3220 2,775

During the period under review, your Company registered a growth of 40% in revenue as compared to the
last FY 2012-13. PBIDT as % of revenue is 19% in FY 2012-13 as compared to 21% in previous year
primarily because of the cumulative impact due to upward revision in project cost budgets on account of
increase in material and labour rates. PBT as % of revenue is 6% in FY 2012-13 as compared to 7% in the
previous year.

Real Estate Sector, a key economic sector in terms of its direct GDP contribution and a key employment
generator in terms of its forward and backward linkages with over 250 industries, is cyclical in nature and
is primarily driven by consumer sentiments, monetary policy and overall economic outlook. FY 2013-14
faced continuing challenges for the Indian Economy including the real estate sector and a sluggish year in
terms of economic growth, largely because of high interest rates, lower investment growth, inflation,

Vatika Limited 2013 - 14




regulatory uncertainty resulting in low GDP growth rate impacting sentiments and investment interest
across businesses. After clear majority at center and government inclination to increase investment in real
estate, this sector has potential to drive the demand in 2015.

Your Company is continuously maintaining its focus on project execution & delivery by optimal
utilization of available resources, surplus asset sales, targeting mid segment housing markets to ensure
sustained order book growth, continuing focus on enhancing the quality of service delivery to its
customers and cost management across various functions. We believe our focused approach and large
asset base will help us sustain the overall economic uncertainty.

2. Update on various process automation and improvement initiatives

As part of its constant endeavor to achieve excellence, your Company has successfully implemented
design management system which ensures speedy and effective closure of project design processes. Apart
from above Company has achieve I1SO certification for its Marketing & Client Services Division to ensure
better quality services to its clients.

As a next step your company intends to provide web access to its property consultants which will give
them access to their running ledgers, their bookings with us, the existing and new schemes that they have
been enrolled for, the inventory available for them to sell etc. This will bring in complete transparency
with one of your Company’s key stake holders and will contribute towards enhanced business
performance

3. Cautionary Statement

Statements in the financial performance and future outlook describing the Company’s projections,
estimates, expectations may be “forward looking statements” within the meaning of applicable security
laws and regulations. Actual results could differ materially from those expressed or implied. Utmost care
has been taken to ensure that the opinions expressed by the management herein contain its perceptions on
the material impacts on the company’s operations but it is not exhaustive.

DIVIDEND
No dividend was recommended by the Board of Directors of the Company.
FIXED DEPOSITS

As on March 31, 2014, fixed deposits from the public and shareholders stood at Rs.899.11 lacs out of
which nil amount remain unclaimed. There were no overdue deposits as on that date.

The Company discontinued the acceptance of Fixed deposits w.e.f April 1, 2014 to comply with the
provisions of Companies Act, 2013 which inter-alia provides for shareholders approval, appointment of
deposit trustees and other requirements.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

The Company had 39 subsidiaries as on March 31, 2014 as set out below:
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1. *Vatika Hotels Private Limited (Wholly Owned Subsidiary)

M/s Vatika Hotels Private Limited is into the business of construction and management of hotels,
restaurants. It also provides Facility Management services and operating business centers on Pan India
basis. The Company has finalized to open three new state-of-the-art business centers in Chennai, Delhi &
Hyderabad & started fit outs during the year for the same. All three business centers will get operational
in 2014-15.

The Hotel "Westin Gurgaon' has performed exceedingly well since its opening in October 2010 and
being able to establish itself as the major hotel in entire Delhi-NCR. The Company plans to start work
very soon on its ambitious project 'The Golf Course Beach Resort' on ECR Chennai Pondicherry Road,
near Pondicherry.

The Facility Management is also growing well with reasonable growth in external clientele also.

Other subsidiary companies as mentioned in point no. 2 to 39 below are into the business of development
of real estate projects. They primarily hold land which eventually being developed by Vatika Limited.
2. *SH Tech Park Developers Private Limited
3. *Vatika Jaipur SEZ Developers Limited

4. *Vatika IT Parks Private Limited

5. *Aspire Promoters Private Limited

6. *Vatika Dwellers Private Limited

7. *Famous Dwellers Private Limited

8. *Valterna Promoters and Developers Private Limited
9. ***Emilia Estates Private Limited

10. * Vatika Overseas Limited

11. **Blossom Properties Private Limited

12. **Crazy Properties Private Limited

13. **Pegasus Infrastructure Private Limited

14. **Sahar Land and Housing Private Limited
15. **Espo Developers Private Limited

16. **Mendell Developers Private Limited

17. **Caspar Developers Private Limited

18. **Fermina Developers Private Limited

19. **Halima Developers Private Limited

20. **Winston Developers Private Limited

21. **Reveka Developers Private Limited

22. **Daren Developers Private Limited

23. **Avenio Developers Private Limited

24. **Brock Developers Private Limited

25. **Stedman Developers Private Limited

26. **Shivganesh Buildtech Private Limited#
27. **Sanskar Buildtech Private Limited

28. **Nakshatra Buildcon Private Limited

29. **Vatika Infratech Private Limited

30. **Magnet Developers Private Limited

31. **Vatika Education Services Private Limited
32. **Vatika Infracon Private Limited

33. **Payton Developers Private Limited
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34.
35.
36.
37.
38.
39.

**Calder Developers Private Limited

**Minorca Developers Private Limited

**Galina Developers Private Limited

**Metis Developers Private Limited

**Pedro Developers Private Limited

**Bjoko Developers Private Limited (formerly Dale Developers Private Limited)

*Wholly owned subsidiaries

** Wholly owned subsidiaries through group companies.

*** Wholly owned subsidiaries through its nominee.

As per the requirements of the provisions of section 212 of Companies Act, 1956, the Annual Report of
all the subsidiary companies of the Company existing as on March 31, 2014 will be attached to the
Balance Sheet of the Company.

A Statement pursuant to the provisions of section 212(3) of the Companies Act, 1956 is enclosed as
Annexure A and forms integral part of this Report.

DIRECTORS

As on the date of this report, the Board of Directors consists of following directors:

Mr. Anil Bhalla Chairman and Whole Time Director
Mr. Gautam Bhalla Managing Director

Mr. Gaurav Bhalla Director

Mr. Alok Sama Director

Mr. Jonathan Richard Vanica Director

In accordance with the provisions of Section 255 and 256 of the Companies Act, 1956 and Articles of
Association of the Company, Mr. Alok Sama, Director of the Company, retires by rotation at the ensuing
Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, has offered himself for re-appointment.

DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the requirement under section 217(2AA) of the Companies Act, 1956 with respect to
Directors’ Responsibility Statement, it is hereby confirmed that:

(i)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

In the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2014 the
applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to
material departures;

The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that were reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit or loss of the
Company for the year under review;

The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

The Directors have prepared the accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2014 on a 'going
concern' basis.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

As on the date of this report the Audit Committee comprises of three (3) directors out of which two (2)
are non executive directors viz. Mr. Gaurav Bhalla & Mr. Jonathan Richard Vanica and one executive
director viz. Mr. Gautam Bhalla.

AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Statutory Auditors, M/s Walker, Chandiok & Co LLP, (formerly Walker Chandiok & Co) Chartered
Accountants, New Delhi, retire at the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting and are eligible for re-
appointment. The Statutory Auditors have forwarded a certificate to the Company stating that their re-
appointment, if made, will be in accordance with the limits prescribed under section 224 (1B) of the
Companies Act 1956.

The Auditor’s observations and the Notes to Accounts referred therein are self-explanatory.
INTERNAL CONTROLS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

Your Company has a proper and adequate system of internal controls to ensure that all assets are
safeguarded and protected against loss from unauthorised use or disposition, and those transactions are
authorized, recorded and reported correctly and adequately.

The Company’s internal controls are supplemented by an extensive program of internal audits, review by
management and documented policies, guidelines and procedures. The Company has appointed M/s Felix
Advisory Private Limited, Chartered Accountants, as Internal Auditors of the Company. The Internal
Auditors submit their report to Audit Committee from time to time for its discussion and necessary action.
The internal control is designed to ensure that financial and other records & processes are reliable for
preparing financial information and for maintaining accountability of assets. All the financial systems are
also reviewed by the Board of the Company.

COST AUDITORS

As per the applicable provisions, Gurvinder Chopra & Co. Cost Accountants had been appointed as the
Cost Auditors of the Company for the FY 2013-14.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 233B and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 1956,
M/s. Gurvinder Chopra & Co. Cost Accountants (firm registration no. 100260), have been re-appointed as
Cost Auditors of the Company for FY 2014-15.

The due date of filing the Cost Compliance Report for FY 2013-14 is September 30, 2014 and the same
shall be filed on or before the due date. The due date of filing cost compliance report for FY 2012-2013
was September 30, 2013 and the same was filed on 30™ September, 2013.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES
In accordance with the provisions of Section 217(2A) of the Companies Act, 1956, read with the

Companies (Particulars of Employees) Rules, 1975 (As Amended) the names and other particulars of
employees are set out in the Annexure B to the Directors’ Report.
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The employees of the Company have contributed most significantly to the growth and development and
have been the cornerstone of its success.The numbers of employees as on March 31, 2014 were 458 as
compared to 457 in the previous year.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS & OUTGO

The particulars required under provisions of section 217(1)(e) of the Companies Act, 1956 read with the
Companies (Disclosure of Particulars in the Report of Board of Directors) Rules 1988, to the extent
applicable to the Company are as follows:

A. Conservation of Energy and Technological Absorption

The information relating to Conservation of Energy and Technology Absorption as required to be
disclosed under Section 217(1)(e) of the Companies Act, 1956, read with Rule 2 of the Companies
(Disclosure of Particulars in the Report of Board of Directors) Rules, 1988, is not applicable to your
Company.

B. Foreign Exchange Earnings and outgo

Your company is not engaged in any primary export business. However, your Company participates in
various fairs/exhibitions held in various countries to promote its product to international customers.

The Foreign exchange earnings and outgo (FOB basis) of the Company is as follows:
(Figures Rs. in Lacs)

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

(2013-2014) (2012-2013)
Earnings 128.60 254.45
Outgo* 733.45 309.69

*Expenditures in foreign exchange are on accrual basis.
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Board acknowledges with gratitude the co-operation and assistance provided to your Company by its
bankers, financial institutions, government as well as non-government agencies. Your Directors thank the
customers, clients, vendors and other business associates for their continued support in the Company’s
growth. The Board also wishes to place on record its appreciation to the contribution made by employees
of the Company in the continued success of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Vatika Limited

Date: 14™ August, 2014

Place: Gurgaon Sd/- Sd/-
Gautam Bhalla Gaurav Bhalla
(Managing Director) (Director)
DIN 00005043 DIN 00005060
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Annexure B

Statement under section 217(2A) of the Companies Act, 1956 read with Companies (Particulars of Employees) Rules, 1975 as amended and
forming part of the Directors’ Report for the year ended March 31, 2014

I. *Details of employees who were employed throughout the year and were in receipt of remuneration aggregating Rs. 60.00 Lacs per annum or Rs. 5.00
Lacs per month or more:-

Particulars of present employment
S | Name Age | Qualification | Experience Date of Designation | Remuneration | %age of | Particulars of
No. S (inyrs.) commencement | /Nature of Received Equity Shares | last
of employment Duties (in Rs.) held employment
1 Mr. Anil | 65 M.A. 28 01.04.2012 Chairman 2,20,53,655/- | 56.96% N.A.
Bhalla cum Whole-
time Director
2 Mr. Kangkan | 55 B. Tech. 33 05.09.2011 President 68,29,929/- NIL Consultant with
Chakraborty (Civil) (Projects) M/s Delhi
International
Airport Pvt. Ltd.

Il. There were no employees who was employed for a part of the financial year and was in receipt of remuneration for any part of the year aggregating
Rs. 5,00,000/- per month or more.

[Il. There were no employees who were employed throughout this financial year or part thereof and were in receipt of remuneration which, in the
aggregate, or as the case may be, at the rate which in the aggregate, is in excess of that drawn by the managing director, or whole time director or
manager and holds by himself or along with his spouse and dependent children, not less than two per cent, of the equity shares of the Company.

*Managing Director is not the employee of the Company — In reply to a query, the Department of Company Affairs has expressed its view that a
managing director is not an employee within the meaning of sub-section (2A) of section 217 [Letter sent to Mysore Kirloskar Ltd. to their query dated
11-11-1975]. During the year under report, Mr. Gautam Bhalla was Managing Director of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Vatika Limited

Sd/- Sd-
Gautam Bhalla Gaurav Bhalla
Date: 14™ August, 2014 (Managing Director) (Director)
Place: Gurgaon DIN 00005043 DIN 00005060
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
(Formerly Walker, Chandiok & Co).
21st Floor, DLF Square

. Jacaranda Marg, DLF Phase Il
Independent Auditors’ Report Gurgaon 122052

India

To the Members of Vatika Limited T +91 124 462 8000

F +91 124 462 8001
Report on the Financial Statements

1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Vatika Limited, (“the
Company”), which comprises the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2014, the Statement of
Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

2. Management is responsible for the preparation of these financial statements, that give a
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and the cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Accounting Standards notified under the Companies Act, 1956 (“the Act”)
read with the General Circular 15/2013 dated September 13, 2013 of the Ministry of
Cotporate Affairs in respect of section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013. This
responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud ot error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on out
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

4. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Company’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of Company’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and approptiate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Chartered Accountants Waiker Chandiok & Co LLP is registered with limited liability
with identification number AAC-2085 and its registered

Offices in Bengaluru, Chandigarh, Chennai, Gurgaon, Hyderabad, Kolkata, Mumbai, New Delhi, Noida and Pune office at L-41 Connaught Circus, New Dethi, 110001, India
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Opinion

6. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us the financial statements give the information required by the Act in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India:

)
if)

iii)

in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March

31, 2014,

in the case of Statement of Profit and Loss, of the profit for the year ended on that
date; and

in the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that
date

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

a.

Partner
Membership No.: 504662

7. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 (“the Order”) issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (4A) of Section 227 of the Act,

we give in the Annexure a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 4 and 5 of
the Order.

8. As required by Section 227(3) of the Act, we report that:

we have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as appears from our examination of those books;

the financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of
account;

in our opinion, the financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
notified under the Companies Act, 1956 read with the General Circular 15/2013
dated September 13, 2013 of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs in respect of
section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013; and

on the basis of written representations received from the directors, as on March 31,
2014 and taken on record by the Board of Directors, we report that none of the
directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2014 from being appointed as a director in
terms of clause (g) of sub-section (1) of section 274 of the Act

Wl o dliobdiz Up

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
(formerly Walker, Chandiok & Co)

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 001076N /N500013

Place: Gurgaon

Date: August 14, 2014

Chartered Accountants
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Annexure to the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of
Vatika Limited, on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2014

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the
financial statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and
explanations given to us and the books of account and other records examined by us in the
notmal course of audit, we report that:

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year
and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion,
the frequency of verification of the fixed assets is reasonable having regard to the
size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

(c) In our opinion, a substantial part of fixed assets has not been disposed off during
the year.

(i) (a) The inventory includes land, completed buildings, projects in progress,
construction and development material and development rights in identified land.
Physical verification of inventory (except stocks represented by development
rights), have been conducted at reasonable intervals by the management. In our
opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable.

(b) The procedures of physical verification of inventory followed by the management
are reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the Company and the nature
of its business.

(c) The Company is maintaining proper records of inventory and no material
discrepancies between physical inventory and book records were noticed on
physical verification.

(iii) (a) The Company has granted unsecured loan to one party covered in the register
maintained under Section 301 of the Act. The maximum amount outstanding
during the year is Rs. 34,204.62 lacs and the year-end balance is Rs. 31,033.67 lacs.

(b) In respect of interest free loans granted, the principal amounts are repayable on
demand and the terms and conditions of such loans ate not, prima facie, prejudicial
to the interest of the Company.

(c) In respect of interest free loan granted, the principal amount is repayable on
demand and since the repayment of such loan has not been demanded, in our
opinion, repayment of the principal amount is regular.

(d) There is no overdue amount in respect of loan granted to such party.

(¢) The Company has not taken any loans, secured or unsecured from companies,
firms or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 301 of the
Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clauses 4(iif)(f) and 4(iii)(g) of the Order are
not applicable.

WANDIO/
E N
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Chartered Accountants
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Annexure to the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of
Vatika Limited, on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2014

(iv)

In our opinion, there is an adequate internal control system commensurate with the size
of the Company and the nature of its business for the purchase of inventory and fixed
assets and for sale of goods and services. With respect to land/development rights
purchase for development, for which owing to the unique and specialized nature of
individual transactions, suitable alternative sources do not exist for obtaining
comparative quotations. During the course of our audit, no major weakness has been
noticed in the internal control system in respect of these areas.

(v) (a) In our opinion, the particulars of all contracts or arrangements that need to be

(b)

(v)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix) ()

Chartered Accountants

entered into the register maintained under Section 301 of the Act have been so
entered.

In our opinion, the transactions made in pursuance of such contracts or
arrangements and exceeding the value of Rs. five lakhs in respect of any party
during the year have been made at prices which are reasonable having regard to the
prevailing market prices at the relevant time.

In our opinion, the Company has complied with the directives issued by the
Reserve Bank of India, the provisions of Sections 58A and 58AA and other
relevant provisions of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules,
1975, as applicable, with regard to the deposits accepted from the public.
According to the information and explanations given to us, no otrder has been
passed by the Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve
Bank of India or any Court or any other Tribunal, in this regard.

In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with its size
and the nature of its business.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company
pursuant to the Rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of
cost records under clause (d) of sub-section (1) of Section 209 of the Act in
respect of Company’s real estate operations and are of the opinion that, prima facie,
the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. However, we
have not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine
whether they are accurate or complete.

Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, investor education and
protection fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, wealth tax,
service tax, custom duty, excise duty, cess and other material statutory dues, as
applicable, have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities,
though there has been a slight delay in a few cases. Undisputed amounts payable in
respect thereof, which were outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six months from
the date they became payable are as follows:
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Annexure to the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of
Vatika Limited, on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2014

Chartered Accountants

Name of the | Nature of Amount (Rs. | Period to | Due Date | Date of
statute the dues in lacs) which the Payment
(excluding amount
interest) relates
Haryana External 964.35 | 2010-11 September | June 16,
Development | Development 13, 2013 2014
and Charges
Regulation of
Urban Areas
Act, 1975
Haryana External 6,279.14 | 2006-07 to | Various Not yet paid
Development | Development 2013-14 dates as
and Charges per agreed
Regulation of tetms of
Utrban Areas license
Act, 1975
Haryana Conversion 431.83 | 2008-09 January Not yet paid
Development | Charges 30, 2008
pand
[,Regulation of
. Urban Areas
Act, 1975

(b) There are no dues in respect of income tax, sales tax, wealth tax, service tax,

customs duty, excise duty and cess that have not been deposited with the
appropriate authorities on account of any dispute except for the amounts
mentioned below:-

May 2003

Name of Nature of | Amount Amount Period to Forum
the statute | the dues (Rs.in | paid under | which the where
(excluding lacs) Protest amount dispute is
interest) (Rs. in lacs) | relates pending
Income Tax | Income tax 2.45 - Assessment CIT (Appeals)
Act, 1961 Year 1996-97
Income Tax | Income tax 597.18 129.24 Assessment High Court
Act, 1961 Year 2003-04
Income Tax | Surcharge 0.63 - Assessment Supreme
Act, 1961 Year 2001-02 | Court
Income Tax | Income tax 260.25 232.09 Assessment CIT (Appeals)
Act, 1961 Year 2003-04
Income Tax | Income tax 2.00 2.00 Assessment CIT (Appeals)
Act, 1961 Year 2003-04
Income Tax | Income tax 29.61 - Assessment Income Tax
Act, 1961 Year 2005-06 | Appellate
Tribunal
Income Tax | Income tax | 2,621.73 - Block High Court
Act, 1961 A@%\ assessment
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Annexure to the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of
Vatika Limited, on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2014

(xi)

(xiii)

(xiv)

Chartered Accountants

Name of Nature of | Amount Amount Period to Forum

the statute | the dues (Rs. in paid under | which the where
(excluding lacs) Protest amount dispute is
interest) (Rs. in lacs) | relates pending

Income Tax | Income tax 8.87 - Assessment Income Tax

Act, 1961 Year 2006-07 | Appellate

Tribunal

Income Tax | Income tax | 1,258.61 - Assessment CIT (Appeals)

Act, 1961 Year 2006-07

Income Tax | Income tax | 1,405.78 235.38 Assessment CIT (Appeals)

Act, 1961 Year 2008-09

Income Tax | Penalty 95.07 - Assessment CIT (Appeals)

Act, 1961 Year 2008-09

Income Tax | Income tax | 7,681.28 5,501.77 Assessment CIT (Appeals)

Act, 1961 Year 2009-10

Income Tax | Income tax 4.83 - Assessment CIT (Appeals)

Act, 1961 Year 2011-12

The Setvice tax 246.38 - Financial Year | Customs

Finance 2003-04 to Excise and

Act, 1994 2011-12 Service Tax

and Service Appellate

Tax Rules Tribunal,

Delhi

The Value 305.72 - Financial Year | High Coutt

Haryana Added Tax 2007-08

Value

Added Tax

Act, 2003

The Value 2,164.07 - Financial Yeatr | High Court

Haryana Added Tax 2010-11

Value

Added Tax

Act, 2003

In our opinion, the Company has no accumulated losses at the end of the financial
year and it has not incurred cash losses in the current and the immediately
preceding financial year.

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to any bank or financial
institution during the year. The Company did not have any outstanding debentures
during the year.

The Company has not granted any loans and advances on the basis of security by
way of pledge of shares, debentures and other securities. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 4(xii) of the Order are not applicable.

In our opinion, the Company is not a chit fund or a nidhi/ mutual benefit fund/
society. Accordingly, provisions of clause 4(xiii) of the Order are not applicable.

In our opinion, the Company is not dealing or trading in shares, securities,
debentures and other investments. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 4(xiv) of

the Order are not applicable.

}
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Annexure to the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of
Vatika Limited, on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2014

(xv) In our opinion, the terms and conditions on which the Company has given
guarantee for loans taken by others from banks or financial institutions are not,
prima facie, prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

(xvi)  In our opinion, the Company has applied the term loans for the purpose for which these
loans were obtained.

(xvii) In our opinion, no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term
investment by the Company.

(xvil) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment of shares to
parties covered in the register maintained under Section 301 of the Act
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 4(xviii) of the Order are not applicable.

(xix) The Company has neither issued nor had any outstanding debentures during the
year. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 4(xix) of the Order are not applicable.

(xx)  The Company has not raised any money by public issues duting the year. Accordingly,
the provisions of clause 4(xx) of the Order are not applicable.

(xxi)  No fraud on ot by the Company has been noticed or reported during the period covered
by our audit.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
(formerly Walker, Chandiok & Co)

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

. N &
Partner i ’Zé\?\; L
Membership No.: 504662 &R AceO>

Place: Gurgaon
Date: August 14, 2014

Chartered Accountants



Vatika Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2014
(Rs. in Lacs)

Note March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders’ funds
Share capital 3 1,387.59 1,387.59
Reserves and surplus 4 101,019.63 95,114.73
102,407.22 96,502.32
Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings 5 202,855.09 139,294.49
Other long-term liabilities 6 304.78 24.19
Long-term provisions 7 349.35 334.18
203,509.22 139,652.86
Current liabilities
Short-term borrowings 8 3,000.00 4,900.00
Trade payables 19,865.69 22.442.43
Other current liabilities 9 349.319.71 291,877.06
Short-term provisions 7 17,201.47 5,042.06
389,386.87 324,261.55
695,303.31 560,416.73
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 10(=) 3,552.79 3,637.56
Intangible assets 10(b) 3.65 4.11
Capital work-in-progress 1,150.15 97.02
Non-current investments 11 25,663.11 24,690.09
Deferred tax assets (net) 12 3,310.18 2,460.78
Long-term loans and advances 13 63,767.28 43.106.97
Other non-current assets 14 3,996.19 3,985.31
101,443.35 77,981.84
Current assets
Inventoties 15 276,562.20 261,577.76
Trade receivables 16 11,135.09 14,610.57
Cash and bank balances 17 9,481.04 7,257.04
Short-term loans and advances 18 174,309.47 134,483.88
Other current assets 19 122,372.16 64,505.64
593,859.96 482,434.89
695,303.31 560,416.73
Notes 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements
This is the Balance She?t referred to in our report of even date.
Wl
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors

s I

VS

X A Gaurav Arora Gquta Gaurav Bhalla

Partner ) \/PW Company Managing Director
Secretary Director

Place: Gurgaon Membership No.: F6350 DIN: 00005043 DIN: 00005060

Date: August 14,2014



Vatika Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2014

Note

Income:
Revenue from operations 20
Other income 21
Total revenue
Expenses: 7
Cost of revenue 22
Employee benefits expense 23
Finance cost 24
Depreciation and amortization expense 10(2)&(b)
Other expenses 25
Total expenses
Profit before tax
Tax expense:

- Current tax

- Deferred tax
Profit for the year
Earnings per share (Rs.) 26

- Basic earning per share
- Diluted eatning per share

Notes 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements

This is the Statement of Pfoﬁt and Loss referred to in our report of even date.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

(formerly Walker, Chandiok & Co)
Chartered Accountants

& &QMA@W &V’OW}
pet Ashish Gupta Gaurav Arora
Partner Company

Secretary

Membership No.: F6350
Place: Gurgaon
Date: August 14, 2014

(Rs. in Lacs)

March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013

164,845.89 117,526.19
2,520.84 928.62
167,366.73 118,454.81
123,200.43 84,381.72
1,709.69 1,491.35
24,637.25 17,369.90
326.21 316.13
8,367.88 6,730.50
158,241.46 110,289.60
9,125.27 8,165.21
4,069.77 4,177.68
(849.40) (1,402.88)
3,220.37 2,774.80
5,904.90 5,390.41
46.05 42.04
39.69 36.24

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

7

Gauthm Bhalla

anaging
Director

DIN: 00005043

Gaurav Bhalla
Director

DIN: 00005060



Vatika Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2014

Cash flows from operating activities
Net profit before tax
Adjustments for :
Depreciation and amortization
Interest expense
Provision for expected costs
Provision for doubtful debts
Advances written off
Claims and contingencies
Rent equalisation reserve
Interest income
Profit on sale of fixed assets (net)
Provision for wealth tax
Profit on sale of investments (net)
Provisions for doubtful advances wtitten back
Amounts written back
Opetrating profit before working capital changes

Decrease in trade receivables
Tncrease in loans and advances
Increase in other current assets
Increase in inventories
Increase in liabilities and provisions
Investments in deposits with banks under lien
Cash flow from operations
Taxes paid (net of refunds)
Net cash flow from/(used in) operating activities - (A)

Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of fixed assets and capital work in progress
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets
Investments made during the year
Investments sold during the year
Investments in bank deposits (having original maturity of more than twelve months)
Interest received
Net cash used in investing activities - (B)

Cash flow from financing activities
Repayments of short term borrowings (net)
Proceeds from long term borrowings
Repayments of long term borrowings
Interest paid

Net cash flow from financing activities - (C)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

(Rs. in Lacs)
Match 31, 2014 March 31, 2013
9,125.27 8,165.21
326.21 316.13
24,572.47 17,345.78
9,456.23 -
142.79 -
2,504.70 235.13
63.50 115.20
(5.01) (14.88)
(806.74) (309.57)
(5.48) (12.47)
0.04) 0.06
(503.07) 9.98)
(80.25) -
(462.33) -
44,328.25 25,830.61
3,332.69 6,573.34
(62,112.53) (28,177.01)
(57,694.83) (28,426.79)
(14,984.44) (58,138.92)
34,916.14 91,087.89
(1,721.14) (2,177.07)
(53,935.86) 6,572.04
(1,628.18) (3,236.38)
(55,564.04) 3,335.66
(1,391.52) (322.83)
32.07 43.80
(3,406.55) (8,714.61)
2,936.60 2,294.40
232.00 (307.00)
517.06 185.80
(1,080.34) (6,820.44)
(1,900.00) (1,100.00)
130,424.08 66,690.63
(47,087.50) (43,777.15)
(24,164.44) (17,317.47)
57,272.14 4,496.01
627.76 1,011.23



Vatika Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2014

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
(formerly Walker, Chandiok & Co)

Chartered Accountants

&WW

pet Ashish Gupta

Gaurav Arora
Partner Company
Secretary

Membership No.: F6350
Place: Gurgaon

Date: August 14, 2014

(Rs. in Lacs)

March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013
6,433.59 5,422.36
7,061.35 6,433.59

627.76 1,011.23

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

autal

Director
DIN: 00005043

Gaurav Bhalla

Director

DIN: 00005060
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
Dear Members,

Your directors have pleasure in presenting the Seventeenth Annual Report of your company
together with the Audited Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2015.

Financial Highlights

Your Company's affairs & financial performance during the yeér as compared with previous year is
summarized below:

Reglstered Office

Vatika Limited

Yatika Triangle, 4th Floor
Sushant Lok, Phase , Black A
Mehrauli - Gurgaon Road
Gurgaon 122 (02, Haryana
INDIA

T 911244177777
F 911244177700
£ info@vatikagroup com

www.vatikagroup.com

Particulars

Amount Amount
{Rs. [n lacs) {Rs. in lacs)
201415 201314
Tolal Income 114,276.32 167,366.73
Less: Total Expenses {110,700.77) (158,241.46)
Profit / (Loss) before fax 3575.55 912527

Less: Provision for Tax:
1. Current Tax 1676.12 4,069.77
2. MAT Credit (394.53) -

Entitlement
3. Income tax earlier 129.24 -
years

4. Deferred Tax 187.56 (849.40)
Profit / {Loss) after Tax 2077.16 5904.90

Business Overview

Real Estate Sector, a key economic sector in ferms of its direct GDP contribution and a key
employment generator in terms of its forward and backward linkages with over 250 industries, is
cyclical in nature and is primarily driven by consumer sentiments, monetary policy and overall
economic outlook. FY 2014-15 faced continuing challenges for the Indian Economy including the
real estate sector and a sluggish year in terms of economic growth, largely because of high interest
rates, lower investment growth, inflation, regulatory uncertainty resulting in low GDP growth rate
impacting sentiments and investment interest across businesses. After clear majority at center and
government inclination to increase investment  in real estate, this sector has potential to drive the
demand in 2016. :

Your Company is continuously maintaining its focus on project execution & delivery by optimal
utilization of available resources, surplus asset sales, targeting mid segment housing markets fo
ensure sustained order book growth, continuing focus on enhancing the quality of service delivery
to its customers and cost management across various functions. We believe our focused approach
and large asset base will help us sustain and overcome the overall economic uncertainty in F.Y
2016-17.

Dividend

No dividend was recommended by the Board of Directors of the Company for F.Y 2014-15,

CIN U74899HR1998PLC054821
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The Company repaid in full the deposits accepted during F.Y. 2013-14 under the provisions of
Companies Act, 1956. As on 31st March, 2015 no amount was outstanding under the above old
scheme.

Further, the Company launched a new fixed deposit scheme on 19" Feburary, 2015 under the
provisions of Companies Act, 2013, details as under:
a) Accepted during the year — Rs. 1,89,75,000/-
b) Remained unpaid or unclaimed as at the end of the year- Nil
c) Whether there has been any default in repayment of deposits or payment of interest thereon
during the year-Nil :

Amounts Transferred to Reserves

The company has transferred Rs 2077.16 lacs to its reserves during the year.

Debentures

During the F.Y. 2014-15, the Company issued 10,750 Non Convertible Zero Coupon Debentures of
face value of Rs. 10,00,000/- each. The above NCDs were also redeemed in the same financial

year. :

Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associate Companies

The Company had 50 subsidiaries as on March 31, 2015 as set out helow:

*Vatika Hotels Private Limited
*SH Tech Park Developers Private Limited

*Vatika Jaipur SEZ Developers Limited

. *Aspire Promoters Private Limited

. *Vatika Dwellers Private Limited

*Famous Dwellers Private Limited

*Valterna Promoters and Developers Private Limited

. *Vatika IT Parks Private Limited

*Vatika Sovereign Park Private Limited

10, Gates Developers Private Limited

11. #Trishul Propbuild Limited

12.*Vatika Overseas Limited

13.**Vatika Seven Elements Private Limited (Formerly Strong Infrabuild Private Limited)
14. “*Blossom Properties Private Limited

15, **Crazy Properties Private Limited

16. **Pegasus Infrastructure Private Limited

17. **Sahar Land and Housing Private Limited

18. **Espo Developers Private Limited

19. **Mendeli Developers Private Limited

20. **Caspar Developers Private Limited

21, **Fermina Developers Private Limited

22. ™Winston Developers Private Limited

23. ™Avenio Developers Private Limited

24. **Brock Developers Private Limited

25, **Stedman Developers Private Limited

26. “Vatika One India Next Private Limited (formerly Shivganesh Buildtech Private Limited)
27. **Sanskar Buildtech Private Limited

28. **Nakshatra Buildcon Private Limited

29. "*Valika Infratech Private Limited

30. **Magnet Developers Private Limited

31. ™Vatika Education Services Private Limited

32. *™Vatika Infracon Private Limited

33. **Payton Developers Private Limited .
34. **Vatika One on One Private Limited (formerly Calder Developers Private Limited)
35, "*Minorca Developers Private Limited

36. **Galina Developers Private Limited

37. "Metis Developers Private Limited

38. **Pedro Developers Private Limited

39. **Clara Developers Private Limited

40. **Aster Promoters & Developers Private Limited

41. **Eberta Developers Private Limited

42. **Velte Developers Private Limited

oW N

LE~N®
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44, "Pandora Builders Private Limited
45. "™VLM Projects Private Limited

46, Kepa Developers Private Limited

47. #i#Daren Developers Private Limited
48. #iHalima Developers Private Limited
49. ##fReveka Developers Private Limited
50. ##Emilia Estates Private Limited

“Wholly owned subsidiaries

** Wholly owned subsidiaries through group companies.

# The Company is in the process of voluntary winding up.
## The Hon'ble High Court of Delhi approved the merger of Daren Developers Private Limited,
Halima Developers Private Limited, Reveka Deavelopers Private Limited, Emilia Estates Private
Limited and Vafika Propbuild anate Limited with Lincoln Developers Private Limited on 16th
September, 2015. However, Copy of Formal Order is awaited from Court.

A report on the performance and financial position of each of the subsidiaries, associates and joint

venture companies as per the Companies Act, 2013 is provided in AQC-1, attached as Annexure-1
to this Report.

Significant and Material orders passed by the Requlators or Courts or Tribunals

There are no significant material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunal which
would impact the going concern status of the Company and its future operation.

a) The Company’s registered office shifted from State of New Delhi to State of Haryana vide
order passed by Regional D|rector on 13" Feburary, 2015 and consequent approval by
the Registrar of Companies on 9™ March, 2015 and CIN of the Company changed to
U74899HR1998PLC054821,

b) The Company has decided to sell its investment of 44,400 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each
held in Vatika Sovereign Park Private Limited at a price of Rs. 16,666 per share each
aggregating consideration of Rs.7399.70 lacs to Famous Dwellers Private Limited and
correspondingly, such transfer of shares took place on September 17, 2015.

Details of Directors and Key Managerjal Personnel

In accordance with the provisions of the Act and the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr.
Gaurav Bhalla, Director of the Company, retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting
and being eligible have oifered himself for re-appointment.

During the year under review, Ms. Deepa Sibal, was appointed as Women Director on the board of
the Company under the provisions of Sec 149(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. Mr. Vineet Taing and
Mr. Manu Raj Singh were appointed as Additional Independent Directors u/s 149 (4) on the board of
the Company. Further Consquent upon reS|gnat|on of Mr. Jonathan Richard Vanica, Mr. Som
Krishna was appointed as Additional Director on 3™ August, 2015.

During the year under review, Mr. Raj Kumar Sahni was appointed as Chief Financial Officer of the
Company as Key Managerial Personnel under section 203 of Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors and Auditors Report

M/s Walker Chandolk & Co.,LLP Chartered Accountants, Statutory Auditors of the Company, hold
office till the conclusion of the ensuing Annual General Meeting and are eligible for re-appointment.
They have confirmed their eligibility to the effect that their re-appointment, if made, would be within
the prescribed limits under the Act and that they are not disqualified for re-appointment.

The Notes on financial statement referred to in the Auditors Report are self-explanatory and do not
call for any further comments. The Auditors Report does not contain any qualification, reservation ar
adverse remark.

Internal Controls and their adequacy

Your Company has a proper and adequate system of internal controls to ensure that all assets are
safeguarded and protected against loss from unauthorised use or disposition, and those
transactions are authorized, recorded and reported correctly and adequately.
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The Company's internal controls are supplemented by an extensive program of internal audits,
review by management and documented policies, guidelines and procedures. The Company has
appointed M/s Felix Advisory Private Limited, Chartered Accountants, as Internal Auditors of the
Company. The Internal Auditors submit their report to Audit Committee from time to time for its
discussion and necessary action. The internal control is designed to ensure that financial and other
records & processes are reliable for preparing financial information and for maintaining
accountability of assets. All the financial systems are also reviewed by the Board of the Company.

Cost Auditors

As per the applicable provisions, Gurvinder Chopra & Co. Cost Accountants had been appointed as
the Cost Auditors of the Company for the FY 2014-15.

Pursuant to the provisions of Secfion 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 Mfs. Gurvinder Chopra & Co.
Cost Accountants (firm registration no. 100260), have been re-appointed as Cost Auditors of the
Company for FY 2015-16. '

Secretarlal Audit

Pursuant fo the provisions of Section 204 of the Act and The Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel} Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed M/s Abhishek
Cupta & Associates, Company Secretaries in practice to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the
Company for F.Y. 2014-15. The Report of the Secretarial Audit in MR-3 is annexed herewith as
Annexure-. 2

The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any qualifications, reservation or adverse remarks.
Declaration by Independent Director ‘ '

The Company has received declarations from all the Independent Directors of the Company
confirming that they meet the criteria of independence as prescribed under the Companies Act,
2013.

The Company has devised a policy for performance evaluation of Independent Directors, Board,
Committeess and other individual Directors which includes criteria for performance evaluation of the
non-executive directors and executive directors be keeping in view the code of conduct prescribed
under Schedule IV of Companies Act, 2013.

Disclosure on Establishment of a Vigil Mechanism

The Board of Directors of the Company in its board meeting held on 14" August, 2014 have
established a vigil mechanism for directors and employees of the Company to report their concerns
or grievances, if any.

The policy on vigil mechanism can also be accessed on the Company’s employees portal
{Veonnect).

Diractors Responsibility Statement

Your directors state that:

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the ﬁnancial'year ended 31st March, 2015,
the applicable accounting standards had been followed and there are no material
departures from the same.

b) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2015 and of the profit
/loss of the Company for that period;

c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2013 for
safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities;

d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;
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e) the directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and
that such internal financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively.

f) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of ali
applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

Particulars of Employees and refated disclosures

The employees of the Company have contributed most significantly to the growth and development
and have been the cornerstone of its success. The numbers of employees as on March 31, 2015
were 429 as compared to 458 in the previous year.

In terms of the provisions of Seclion 197 of the Act read with Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel), Rules, 2014, a statement showing the names and other

particulars of the employees drawing remuneration in excess of the limits set out in the said rules is
annexed as Annexure-3

Your Directors further state that during the year under review, there were no cases filed pursuant to
the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

Changes in Share Capital
During the Financial Year 2014-15, the authorized share capital of the Company has been
increased from Rs. 51 crores divided into 4,80,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each and 30,00,000

preference shares of Rs. 10/- each to 65 crores divided into 6,00,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10
each and 50,00,000 preference shares of Rs, 10/- each.

The paid up share capital of the Company has been increased from Rs.13,87.58,650 to Rs.
55,68,82,090.

Extract of Annual Refurn

Exiract of Annual Return of the Company in format MGT -9, for the Financial Year 2014-15 has
been annexed herewith as Annexure-4 to this Report.

Number of Board Meetings during the Financial Year 2014 - 15

During the Financlal Year 2014-15, 19 {Nineteen) meetings of the Board of Directors were held
during various dates.

Committees of Board
Audit Committee
During the F.Y 2014-15, Audit Committee met. on 14™ August, 2014.All the recommendations made
by the Audit Committee were accepted by the Board.
After induction of Independent Directors, the Audit Committee was reconstituted. At present, Audit

Committee comprises of Mr. Gautam Bhalla, Mr. Vineet Taing and Mr. Manu Raj Singh. During F.Y.
2015-16 till date 3 meetings of the Committee has been held.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises of Mr. Gautam Bhalla, Mr. Gaurav Bhalla
and Mr. Manu Raj Singh,

The Committee was constituted on 31% March, 2015 . A meeting of Nomination and Remuneration
Committee was held on 31% March, 2015, Till date 2 meetings of the Committee has taken place.

Company has also devised a policy for Directors appointment and remuneration and the criteria for
determining the qualifications, performance, positive atiributes and independence of the Directors.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee

The GSR Committee comprises of Mr. Anil Bhalla, Mr. Gautam Bhalla and Mr. Vineet Taing.
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The CSR Committee has formulated and recommended to the Board, a Corporate Social
Respansibility Policy (CSR Policy) indicating the activities to be undertaken by the Company, which
has been approved by the Board. _

During the year, the Company has spent Rs 1561.58 f.a,tdy( 2% of the average net profits of last
three financial years) on CSR activities.

The Commiflee was constituted on 31% March, 2015 and one meeting of the Committee was held on
31* March, 2015 itself. Till date 2 meetings of the Committee has taken place.

The Annual Report on CSR activities is annexed herewith as Annexure- 5 covering the policy
developed & implemented by the Company on CSR initiatives taken during the year.

Borrowing and Investment Committee

The Borrowing and Investment Committee comprises of Mr. Anil Bhalla and Mr. Gautam Bhaila as
members. During the financial year 2014-15, 24 Meetings of the Committee were held.

Particulars of Contracts or Arrangements with Related Parties

The particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to in Section 188(1) of the
Companies Act 2013 for the Financial Year 2014-15 in the prescribed format, AOC 2 has been
annexed as annexure- B.with the report.

Particulars of Loans, Guarantee or Investments

The Particutars of Loans received or given, Guarantess given or received or investments made are
recorded & accounted for and disclosed in the Financial statements for the year ended on 31%
March 2015, The Company has complied with the requirements of Section 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013.

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

A, Conservation of energy:
a) the Company Is not engaged in any manufacturing activity and- hence, no
reparting on the conservation of energy is required:
b) further, the company has not made any additional investment and there are no
existing proposals for reduction of energy consumption for reasons mentioned in point (a);
c) for reasons mentioned in point (a), impact of energy conservation measures
cannot be ascertained;
d) disclosures on total energy consumption and energy consumption per unit of
production cannot be made as company is not engaged in any manufacturing activity.

B. Technology absorption:

(a) the Company has not entered into any agreement for technology absorption.
Hence, reporting on the sams cannot be made, .

C. Foreign exchange earnings and outgo:
a) during the period under review, there were no activities relating to exports,
b) The Foreign exchange earnings and outgo {FOB basis) of the Company is as
follows;
{Figures in lakhs)
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
{2014-2015) (2013-2014)
Earnings 89.49 128.60
Qutge* . 504.66 733.45

*Expenditures in foreign exchange are on accrual basis.
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There have been no material changes and commitments which affects the financial position of the
company which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the company to which the
financial statements relate and the date of the Report.

Your company has developed and implemented a Risk Management Policies in various functional
departments which covers identification of elements of risk, if any, which according to the Beard of
Directors is necessary for prevention of operations of the Company.

The Directors express their sincere appreciation to the valued customers, bankers and clients for
their support

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Vatika Limited

o7

Gautam Bhalla
Mangging Director
DIN;/00005043

Date: 21* September, 2015
Place: Gurgaon

DIN: 00005060

A Address : Farm No 4, Hyde ddress: Farm No 4,
Park Hyde Park, Sultanpur,
Sultanpur, Mehrauli, Mehrauli, New Delhi -

New Delhi - 110030 110030
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Walker Chandiok & Co 1L1P
(Farmerly Walker, Chardiok & Co}
21st Floor, DLF Square
Jacaranda Marg, DLF Phase Il
Gurgaon 122002

India

Independent Auditor’s Report T +91 124 462 8000
F +91 124 452 8001

To the Members of Vatika Limited

Report on the Financial Statements

1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Vatika Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2015, the Statement of
Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summoary of the

significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

2. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial
statements, that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, mcluding the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the
Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended). This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act; safegnarding the assets of the Company; preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of approptiate accounting poficies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and  design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial coatrols, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit.

4. We have taken into account the provistons of the Act, the accounting and auditing
standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

5. We ceonducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified undet
Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

Walker Chandiok & Co LLP is registered with limited liability
. with identification number AAC-2085 and its registered
Cffices in Bengalury, Chandigarh, Chennat, Gurgaon, Hyderabad, Kolkata, Mumbai, New Delhi, Noida and Fune office at L-41 Connaught Circus, New Defhi, 110001, India

Chartered Accountants
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An aundit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and the disclosures in the financial statements. The proceduses selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal financial controls relevant to the Company’s preparation of
the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpese of expressing an
opinion on whether the Company has in place an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and the coperating effectiveness of such contrels. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and approptiate to
provide a basis for our audit opinicn on the financial statements,

Opinion

8.

Ia our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairg of the Company as at March
31, 2015, and its profit and its cash flows fot the year ended on that date.

Emphasis of Matter

9.

We draw attention to Note 31(d} to the financial statements which describes the
uncertainty relating to the outcome of certain income tax related matters pending in
litigation with courts/appellate authorities. Pending the final outcome of these matrers,
which is preseatly unascertainable, no adjustments have been made in the financial
statements. Our opinion is not qualified in respect of these matters.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

10. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2015 (*the Order™) issued by

11.

the Central Government of India in terms of Section 143{11) of the Act, we give in the
Annexure a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

2. we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b. in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

c. the financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of
account;

d. in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended);




Chartered Accountants

lker Chandick & Co LLP

e. on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March
31, 2015 and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31 March 2015 from being appomted as a director in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act;

f.  with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Aundit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i as detailed in Note 31 (b), (c), (d) and {e) to the financial statements, the Company
has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position;

ii. the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foresceable losses; and

ili. thete were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Iavestor
FEducation and Protection Fund by the Company.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

(Formerly Walker, Chandivk & Co)

Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No.: 601076N/IN500013
/

pet Ashish Gupta
Partner
Membership No.: 504662

Place: Gurgaon
Date: September 21, 2015
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Annexure to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Varika
Limited, on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2015

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the
financial statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and
explanations given to us and the books of account and other records examined by us in the
normeal course of audit, we report that:

@

(1)

(ix5)

)

\g

(a)

(b)

(@)

(b)

(©

(b)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets,

The fixed assets have been physically verified by the management dusing the year
and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion,
the frequency of verification of the fixed assets is reasonable having regard to
the size of the Company and the nature of its assets,

The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable
intervals during the year, except for inventory represented by development
rights. For inventory represented by development rights at the year-end, written
confirmations have been obtained by the management.

The procedures of physical verification of inventory followed by the
management are reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the Company
and the nature of its business.

The Company is maintaining proper tecords of lgventory and no material
discrepancies between physical inventory and book records were noticed on
physical verification.

The Company has granted interest free unsecured loans to companies covered in
the tegister maintained under Section 189 of the Act; and with respect to the
same:

the principal amounts are repayable on demand in accordance with such terms
and conditions, in our opinicn, receipt of the principal amount is regular; and

thete is no overdue amount 1n respect of loans granted to such companies.

In our opinion, there is an adequate internal control system commensurate with the
size of the Company and the nature of its business for the purchase of nventory and
fixed assets and for the sale of goods and services. With respect to land/development
rights purchase for development, for which owing to the unique and specialized nature
of individual transactions, suitable alternative sources do not exist for obtaining
comparative quotations. During the course of our audit, no major weakness has been
noticed in the internal control system in respect of these arcas.

In our opinien, the Company has complied with the directives issued by the
Reserve Bank of India, the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 and other relevant
provisions of the Act and the Companies {(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014
{as amended) as applicable, with regard to the deposits accepted. According to
the information and explanations given to us, no order has been passed by the
Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of
India or any Court or any other Tribunal, in: this regard.




lker Chandiock & Co LLP

Annexure to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Vatika
Limited, on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2015

{vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company
pursuant to the Rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of
cost records under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act in respect of
Company’s products/services and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the
prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. However, we
have not made a detailed examination of the cost records with 2 view to
determine whether they are accurate or complete.

(vil) (a) Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income-tax, sales-tax, wealth tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise,
value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, have not
been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities and there have been
significant delays in a large number of cases. Undisputed amounts pavable in
respect thereof, which were outstanding at the year-end for a period of mozre
than six months from the datc they became payable are as foliows:

Name of the | Nature of the | Amount (Rs. | Period to Due Date Date of
statute dues in lacs) which the Payment
(excluding amount
interest) relates
Haryana External 6,901.41 2006-07 to | Various Not yet paid
Development | Development 2014-15 dates as per
and Regulation | Charges agreed terms
of Urban of license
Areas Act,
1975
Haryana Internal 933.16 2014-15 September July 10, 2015
Development Development 12,2014
and Regulation | Charges
of Urban
Areas Act,
1975

(b) The dues outstanding in respect of income-tax, sales-tax, wealth tax, service tax,
duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax and cess on account of any
dispute, ate as follows:

Name of Natute of Amount Amount Period to Forum where
the statute | dues (Rs. in lacs) | Paid which the dispute is
(including Under amount pending
interest and Protest (Rs. | relates
penalty) in Jacs)
Income Tax | Income tax 2.45 - Assessment CIT (Appeals)
Act, 1961 Yeatr 1996-97
Income Tax | Income tax 262.25 262.25 Asgsessment CIT (Appeals)
Act, 1961 Year 2003-04
Income Tax | Income tax 467.94 - Block Honourable ;
Act, 1961 assessiment High Court at .
May 2003 Delhi

Chartered Accotntants
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Annexure to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Vatika
Limited, on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2015

Name of Wature of Amount Amount Period to Forum where
the statute | dues {Rs. in lacs) | Paid which the dispute is
(including Under amount pending
interest and Protest (Ks. | relates
penalty) in lacs)
Income Tax | Income tax 2,621.73 - Block Honourable
Act, 1961 assessment High Court at
May 2003 Delhi
Income Tax | Income tax 8.87 - Assessment Income Tax
Act, 1961 Year 2006-07 | Appellate
: Treibunal
Income Tax | Income tax 1,258.61 1,258.01 Assessment CIT (Appeals)
Act, 1961 Year 2006-07
Income Tax | Income tax 1,090.83 235.38 Assessment Income Tax
Act, 1901 Year 2008-09 | Appellate
Tribunal
Income Tax | Penalty 95.07 95.07 Assessment Income Tax
Act, 1961 Year 2008-09 | Appellate
Tribunal
Income Tax | Income tax 7,681.28 4,557.80 Assessment Income Tax
Act, 1961 Year 2009-10 | Appellate
Tribunal
Income Tax | Income tax 51.97 - Agsessment CIT (Appeals)
Act, 1961 Year 2007-08
Income Tax | Income tax® | 2,343.41 - Assessment CIT (Appeals)
Act, 1961 Year 2007-08
Income Tax | Income tax* | 2,184.92 - Assessment CIT {(Appeals)
Act, 1961 Year 2008-09
Income Tax | Income tax* | 2,015.81 - Assessment CI'T (Appeals)
Act, 1961 Year 2009-10
Income Tax | Income tax™® | 4,243.33 - Assessment CIT {Appeals)
Act, 1961 Year 2010-11
Income Tax | Income tax* | 1,161.86 - Assessment CIT (Appeals)
Act, 1961 Year 2013-14
The Finance | Service tax 246.38 - Financial Year | Customs Excise
Act, 1994 2003-04 to and Service Tax
and Service 2011-12 Appellate
Tax Rules Tribunal, Delhi

#*The Company has received notices of demand under section 156 of the Income Tax Act,
1961 wherein total demand of Rs. 11,949.33 lacs has been raised on the Company.
However the management hasn’t accepted such demand and has filed appeals in respect of
these demands with the Commission of Income Tax (Appeals) subsequcnt to year end.
Accordingly, the amount has been considered to have been disputed. -

Chartered Accountants
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Annexure to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Vatika
Limiied, on the financial statements for the year ended Maxch 31, 2015

{c} There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company ia accordance with the relevant
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 (1 of 1956) and rules made thereuader.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(vii)(c) of the Order are not applicable.

{viil) Ir our opinion, the Company has no accumulated losses at the end of the
financial year and it has not incurred cash losses in the current and the
immediately preceding financial year.

{ix) In our opinion, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to any |
financial institution or a bank or to debenture-holders during the year.

(x) In our opinion, the terms and conditions on which the Company has given
guarantee for loans taken by others from banks or financial institutions are not,
prima facie, prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

(1) In our opinion, the Company has applied the term loans for the purpose for which
these loans were obtained.

{xii) No fraud on or by the Company has been noticed or reported during the petiod
covered by our audit.

i f : ¢ b !
el G dinll, Lt

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

(Fovmerly Walker, Chandiok & Co)

Chartered Accountants
Fitm’s Registration No.: 0010

h per Ashish Gupta
Partner
Membership No.: 504662

Place: Gurgaon
Date: September 21, 2015

Chartered Accountants



Vatika Limived
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2015

(ALK arnamuts are in Indian Rupees in facs, nnless otherpise specified)

1. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 Shareholders’ funds
Sharc capital

Reserves and surplus

2 Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings
Other long-term liabilities

Long-term provisions

3 Current Habilitics
Short-term borrowings
Trade payables
Other current Habilities

Short-term provisions

1. ASSETS
Non-current assets
1 Fixed asscts
Tangible assets
Tntangible assets
Capital work-in-progress
Non-current investments
Deferred tax assets (net)
Long-term loans and advances

Other non-current assets

2 Current assets
Current investments
Tnventorics
Trade receivables
Cash and bank balances
Short-term loans and advances

Other current assets

Note

10

11(a)
1i(h)

12
13
14
15

16
17
18
19
20
21

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

"I'his is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of cven date.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
(formerty Walker, Chandisk & Ca)}

Chartered Accountants

Per Ashish Gupta
Partner

Place: Gurgaon
Date: September 21, 2015

Manalring Director
\ DIN}' 00005043

RicS

Raj Kumar Sahni
Chicf Financial Officer

%

March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014

5.568.82 1,387.59
98,.915.55 101,019.62
104,484.57 102,407.21
162,522.85 133,268.89
260.17 304,78
618.03 349,35
163,401,05 133,923.02
160,998.41 103,643.33
34,467.51 19,865.60
308,141.61 318,262.59
16,741.42 17,201.46
520,348.75 458,973.07
788,234.17 695,303.30
3,501.31 3,552.79
12,90 3.65
2,718.74 1,150.14
42,863.90 25,663.11
3,122.62 3,310.13
32,822.06 60,062.74
497915 3,996.19
90,020.68 97,738.80
7.701.86 -
309,077.96 276,562.20
35,317.30 11,135.09
15,225.41 9.481.04
219,466.68 178,014.01
111,424.28 122,372.16
698,213.49 597,564.50
788,234.17 695,303.30

For and on hehalf of Board of Directors

Gaurav Bhalla
Director
DIN: 00005060

A;Y%W'
Gaurav W

Company Secretary
Membership No.: F6350




Vatka Limited

Statenaent of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2015

(AU awomnis are in Indian Rupeer in lacs, unfess otheriise specified)

Income;
Revenue from operations

Other income
Total revenue

Expenses:

Cost of revenue

Employee benefits expense

Finance cost

Depreciation and amoertization expense

Other expenscs

Total expenses

Profit before tax

Tax expense:
- Current tax
- MAT credit entitlement
- Income tax earlier years
- Deferred tax

Profit for the year

Earnings per share (Rs.}

- Basic earning per shace
- Diluted earning per share

Note

[RE R ]
W b3

24
25
26
11(a)&(b)
27

28

The accompanying notes form an integral patt of these financial statements.

This is the Statement of Peofit and Loss referred to in out report of even date.

Lol throndiada i osd

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
(formerly Walker, Chandiok & Ca)

Chartered Accountants

pet Ashmh upta e

Partner

Place: Gurgaon
Date: September 21, 2015

7

(Z\y}\ﬁ\’

¢ Gautain Bhalla
E
{ Managihg Director

A DIN /60005043

Raj Kumar Sahni
Chief Financial Officer

March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
110,994.54 164,845.89
3,281.78 2,520.84
114,276.32 167,366.73
66,803.82 123,200.43
1,647.47 1,709.69
32,126.59 24,637.25
447.81 326.21
9,375.08 8,367.88
110,700.77 158,241.46
3,575.55 9,125.26
1,576.12 4069.77
(394.53) .
129.24
187.56 (849.40)
1,498.30 3,220.37
2,077.16 5,904.89
411 12.30
411 10.60

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

/4 Gaurav Bhalla
Director

DIN: 06305060

Gautv Arora”
Company Secretary
Membership No.: F6350



Vatika Limited
Cash Flow Statemeni for the year ended March 31, 2015

(AL amounts are in Indian Rupees in lacs, unless otherwise specified)

Cash flows from operaiing activities
Net profit before tax
Adjustments for :
Depteciation and amortization
Interest expense
Provision for expected costs
Provision for doubtful advances and receivables
Advances written off
Claims and contingencies
Rent equalisation reserve
Interest income
Profit on sale of fixed assets {(net)
Provision for wealth tax
Profit on: sale of mvestments (net)
Provisions for doubtful advances written back
Amounts written back

Operating profit before working capital changes

(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables

Increase in loans and advances

Decrease/ (increase) in other cutrent assets

Increase in inventories

Increase in liabilities and provisions

Increase in investments in deposits with banks under lien
Cash used in operations

Taxes paid (net of refunds)
Net cash nsed in operating activities - (A)

Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of fixed assets and capital work in progress
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets
Investments made during the year
Lnvestments sold during the year
Investments in bank deposits (having original maturity of more than twelve months)
Interest received

Net cash used in investing activities - (B)

Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds/ (repayments) of shost term borrowings (net)
Proceeds from long term borrowings
Repayments of long term borrowings
Interest paid
Net cash flow from financing activities - (C)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
3,575.55 9,125.26
447.81 326.21
32,070.99 24,572.47
2.44 9,456.23
2,400.00 142.79
4.89 2,504.70
227.10 63.50
(67.35) (5.01)
(882.06) (806.74)
(2.12) (5.48)
(0.02) (0.04)
(41.56) (503.07)
- (80.25)
(116.98) (462.33)
37,618.69 44,328.24
(26,582.21) 3,332.69
(13,458.70) (62,112.53)
9,982.51 (57,694.83)
(32,515.75) (14,084.44)
(9,800.78) 34,916.14
(514.77) (1,721.14)
(35,271.01) (53,935.86)
(2,476.59) (1,628.18)
(37,747.60) (55,564.05)
(1,923 50) (1,391.52)
13.44 32.07
(26,679.53) (3,406.55)
1,818.42 2,936.60
61.00 232.00
1,046.90 517.06
(25,663.27) (1,080.34)
5,641.74 (1,900.00)
320,553.81 130,424.08
(205,193.34) (47,087.50)
(32,118.32) (24,164.44)
68,883.89 57,272.14
5,473.02 627.76

2 !




Vatika Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2015

(AL armonnis are tn Indian Rupees in lacs, anless othermise specified)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the vear (refer note 19)

March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
7,061.35 6,433.59
12,534.37 7.061.35
5,473.02 627.76

This 15 the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
{formerly Walker, Chandiok & C)

W
.
] &,}V é“i\ Z?fiﬁ/%’
pet Ashish Gupta /Gauta Bhalla
Partner ¢ Managing Director
BIN:A0005043
Place: Gurgaon Ray Kumaw
Date: Scptember 21, 2015 Chief Financial Offie

Fot and on behalf of Boaid of Directors

autav Bhalla
Director

DIN: 00005060

Crantan o
Gauvrav Averd™
Company Secretary

Membership No.: F6350
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vatika:

creating lasting value

DIRECTORS' REPORT

Dear Members,

The Board of Directors is pleased‘ to present the Eighteenth Annual Report along with Audited
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2016

Financial Performance

The Censolidated Financial Performance of the Company for the financial year 2015-16 is
summarized as under:

(Rs in lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended
31.03.2016
Total Income 151,755.45
Less: Total Expenses 140,494.82

Profit / {Loss) before tax
Less: Provision for Tax;

1. Current T_ax 886.15
2. MAT Credit Entiflement . (105.53)
3. Income tax earlier years 0:43

4, Deferred Tax earlier years 1102.41

5. Deferred Tax {10.99)

6. Minority interest . 72.01
Profit / (Loss) after Tax 9316.15

Business Overview

Real Estate Sector, a key economic sector in terms of its direct GDP contribution and a key
employmenf generator in terms of its forward and backward linkages with over 250 industries, is
cyclical in nature and is primarily driven by consumer sentiments, monetary policy and overall
economic cutlook. After clear majority at center and government inclination to increase investment
in real estate, this sector has potential to drive the demand in 2017-18.

Your Company posted a consolidated total income of Rs 151,?55.45 lakhs and consolidated profit
after tax of Rs 9316.15 lakhs during the year ended March 31, 2016.

Despite the current uncertainties and challenges in the Real Estate environment, the Company is
continuously maintaining its focus on project execution & delivery by optimal utilization of available
resources, surplus asset sales, targeting mid segment housing markets to ensure sustained order
book growth, continuing focus on enhancing the quality of service delivery to its customers and cost
management across various functions. We believe our focused approach and large asset base will
help us sustain and overcome the overall economic uncertainty in F.Y 2016-17/2017-18 and for
future years to come.

DIVIDEND

During the year under review, no dividend was recommengded by the Board of Directors of Vatika

Limited for F.Y 2015-16.

Registered Office

Vatika Limited

Vatika Triangle, 4th Floor
Sushant Lok, Phase |, Block A
Mehrauli - Gurgaon Road
Gurgaen 122 002, Haryana
INDIA

T 910244177777
F 911244177700
E info@vaikagroup.com

www.vatikagroup.com

CIN: U74899HR1998PLCOS4821




SHARE CAPITAL

The paid up equity share capital of Vatika Limited as at March 31, 2016 stood at Rs 5,56,882,090.

Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associate Companies

Pursuant to first proviso to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act"), a statement,
containing salient features of financial statements of Company's subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates (in Form AOC-1), is aftached to the financial statements as Ann 1. The said
statement describes the performance and financial position of each of Company's subSIdlanes joint
ventures and associates.

The Company had 43 subsidiaries as on March 31, 2016 as set out below:

*Vatika Hotels Private Limited
*SH Tech Park Developers Private Limited
*Vatika Jaipur SEZ Developers Limited
*Aspire Promoters Private Limited
*Famous Dwellers Private Limited
*Valterna Promoters and Developers Private Limited
*atika |T Parks Private Limited
w*\/atika Sovereign Park Private Limited
*Gates Developers Private Limited
10. #Trishul Propbuild Limited
11*Vatika Overseas Limited
12.**"/atika Seven Elements Private Limited
13. **Blossom Properties Private Limited
14. **Crazy Properties Private Limited
15, **Pegasus Infrastructure Private Limited
16. **Sahar Land and Housing Private Limited
17. **Espo Developers Private Limited .
18. *Mendell Developers Private Limited
19. **Caspar Developers Private Limited
20. **Fermina Developers Private Limited
21, **Winston Developers Private Limited
22. =*Avenio Developers Private Limited
23. *“Brock Developers Private Limited
24. **Stedman Developers Private Limited
25. “*Vatika One India Next Private Limited
26. **Sanskar Buildtech Private Limited
27. **Nakshatra Buildcon Private Limited
28. **Vatika Infratech Private Limited
29. **Magnet Developers Private Limited
30. **Vatika Infracon Private Limited
31. **Payton Developers Private Limited
32. **Vatika One on One Private Limited
33. **Minorca Developers Private Limited
34. **Galina Developers Private Limited
35. **Metis Developers Private Limifed
36. **Pedro Developers Private Limited
37. **Clara Developers Private Limited
38. **Aster Promoters & Developers Private Limited
39. **Eberta Developers Private Limited
40. **Velte Developers Private Limited
41. **Antonius Developers Private Limited
42. **Pandora Builders Private Limited
43. **VLM Projects Private Limited

oML

* Wholly owned subsidiaries

“ Wholly owned subsidiaries through group companies.
*** Jointly Controlled Entities

# The Company is in the process of voluntary winding up.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT

In accordance with the Accounting Standard (AS) 21 on Consolidated Financial Staternent, the
Audited Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2016 is provided in the
Annual Report, which includes the assets, liabilities, income, expegises and other details of the

Company and its subsidiary.




Pursuant to Section 129 of the Companies Act, 2013 {the Act) read with Rule 5 of the Companies
(Account) Rules, 2014, a statement containing salient features of the financial statements of
subsidiary in Form AQC -1 is attached as Arinexure~1 to Consolidated Financial Statement forming
part of this Annual Report.

FIXED DEPQSITS

During the year under review, your Company (Vatika Limited) has not accepted any deposits under
Chapter V of the Act.

Further, the Company had launched a fixed deposit scheme on 191 February, 2015 under the
provisions of Companies Act, 2013, details as under:

a) Accepted during the year — NIL

b) Remained unpaid or unclaimed as at the end of the year- 38.50 lakhs

¢} Whether there has been any default in repayment of depesits or payment of interest thereon

during the year-NIL

During the year under review Vatika Hotels Private Limited had launched Fixed Deposit scheme on
22.01.2016 under the provisions of Companies Act 2013

The details pertaining to the Fixed Deposits are as below:
a) Accepted during the year — Rs. 67,950,000/- {From March, 2016 till September, 2016)

b) Remained unpaid or unclaimed as at the end of the year- Nil
c) Whether there has been any default in repayment of deposits or payment of interest thereon

during the year-Nil
LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENT

All the investments made by the Company (Vatika Limited) were in accordance with the provisions of
Section 186 of the Act and the rules made thereunder. The Board of Directors of the Company has duty
constituted an Borrowing and Investment Committee that after proper evaluation and assessment of all
the proposed investment proposals as per specified parameters, provides its recommendation to the
Board. The details of all current and non-current investments of the Company are duly disclosed in the

Notes fo Standalone Financiat Statements. .

Amounts Transferred to Reserves

The company has made adjustments to Reserves & Surplus account during the year and accordingly
Rs 54246.31 lakhs has been posted as Reserves & Surplus for the year.

Debentures

During the F.Y. 2015-16, Vatika Limited issued and allotted 12280 Secured, Unlisted, Unrated, Fully

redeemable, Non Convertible Zero Coupon Debentures of face value of Rs. 10,00,000/- each issued El“

a discount of Rs 185667.75/- per debenture, aggregating issue value of Rs1228,00,00,000/~ These. ¢lebendutes
ot nedeemed on 28" Mch 2018 ok o dosovdd 9 Ra 149 febing pew debenbue.

Details of Directors_and Key Managerial Parsonnel

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Act and the rules made there under, Mr.
Gautam Bhalla, Director {DIN:00005043), retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and
being eligible offers himself for re-appointment. The Directors recommend re-appointment of Mr
Gautam Bhalla at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

During the year under review the following Directors resigned from the Direclorship of the Company
(Vatika Limited):

1. Mr Alok Sama w.e.f 03.03.2016
2. Mr Jonathan Richard Vanica w.e.f 03.08.2015
3. Mr Som Krishna w.e.f 18.03.2016

As on date the Board of Vatika Limited comprises of Mr Anil Bhalia-Chairman of the Company, Mr
Gautam Bhalla-Managing Director, Mr Gaurav Bhalla-Director, Ms Deepa Sibal-Women Director, Mr Raj
Kumar Sahni-Chief Financial Officer and Mr Vineet Taing and Mr Manu Raj Singh-Independent

Directors of the Company.

Declaration by independent Directors

Independent Directors of the Gompany have declared to the Company (Vatika Limited) that they meet
the criteria of independence as provided under Section 149(6} of tie Act.
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The Company has devised a policy for performance evaluation of Independent Directors, Board,
Committees and other individual Directors which includes criteria for performance evaluation of the non-
executive directors and executive directors keeping in view the code of conduct prescribed under
Schedule IV of Companies Act, 2013.

Board Meetings

During the Financial Year 2015-16, Twenty (20} meetings of the Board of Directors of Vatika Limited
were held to transact the business of the Company. The time gap between the two consecutive Board
Meetings did not exceed 120 days. The details of the Board Meetings are provided below: .

5. No. Date of Board Meeting
1 15.04.2015
2 16.04.2015
3 17.04.2015
4 01.05.2015
5 19.06.2015
6 05.07.2015
7 03.08.2015
8 19.08.2015
9 01.09.2015
10 11.09.2015
11 17.09.2015
12 18.09.2015
13 . 21.09.2015
14 20.10.2015
15 20.11.2015
16 30.12.2015
17 31.12.2015
18 20.01.20186
19 16.02.2016
20 28.03.2016

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As per provisions of Section 178(3) of the Act, on the recommendation of the Nomination and
Remuneration Commiltee, your Company has formulated a Nomination and Remuneration Policy. The
policy is formulated for:

> setting criteria with . regard to identifying persons who are qualified to become Directors
(Executive and Non-Executive} and persons who may be appointed in Senior Management and Key
Managerial positions of the Company;

» to determine remuneration, based on the Company's size, financial position, trends and
practices on remuneration prevailing in the industry; and
> to carry out evaluation of the performance of Directors, Key Managerial and Senior

Management Personnel and to attract, retain, motivate, and promote talent and to ensure long-term
sustainability of talented Manageriat Persons and create competitive advantage.

The Nomination and Remuneration Gommitiee of Vatika Limited comprises of VMr. Gautam Bhalla, Mr.
Gaurav Bhalla and Mr. Manu Raj Singh.

Till date Five {5) meetings of Nomination and Remuneration Committee were held in Financial Year
2015-16

BOARD EVALUATION

As per Section 178 of the Act, performance evaluation of the individual Directors, Chairman, Board and
Committees thereof iz an annual exercise. Based on the criteria set by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee, performance of Independent Directors was evaluated by the Board of
Directors. Independent Directors in their separate meeting evaluated the performance of non-
independent Directors, including the Chairman, Board and Committees thereof. Evaluation results were
discussed in the Board Meeting of Vatika Limited. The Board was satisfied with the evaluation results
that reflected the overall engagement of the Directors individually, the Board and its Committees.

PARTICULARS OF DIRECTCORS AND EMPLOYEES

‘Pursuant to Section 197(12} of the Act, read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, details/information’s related to the remuneration of
Directors and Key Managerial Personnel are set out in Anhextire:3J this Report.




The employees of the Company {Vatika Limited) have contributed most significantly to the growth and
development and have been the cornerstone of its success. The numbers of employees as on March 31,
2016 were 393 as compared to 429 in the previous year.

Your Directors further state that during the year under review, there were no cases filed pursuant to the
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

DIRECTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(c) of the Act, the Directors confirm the following:

a. In the preparation of the Annual Accounts, the applicable Accounting Standards have been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material deparfures;

b. The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the
Company for that period,

c. The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d. The Directors have prepared the Annual Accounts on a going concern basis,

e. The Directors have laid down internal financial controls fo be followed by the Company and that
such internal financial controls are adequate and were operaling effectively; and

f. The Directors have devised prbper systems to ensure compliancé with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL

The Company (Vatika Limited} has a robust system of internal financial control, commensurate with the
size and complexity of its business operations. It ensures that all the business transactions are
recorded in a fair and transparent manner. The Company has appointed M/s Felix Advisory Private
Limited, Chartered Accountants firm as Internal Auditors that scrutinizes the financials and other
operations of the Company. The internal Auditors also checks if the applicable laws have been
complied with or not.- Internal Auditors directly report to the Audit Committee. Based on the findings of
Internal Auditors, process owners undertake corrective actions in their respective areas. During the
year and at the year-end, such controls were tested for adequacy and operating effectiveness and no
reportable material weakness or significant deficiency was observed in the design or operations.

RISK MANAGEMENT

During the year, your Company (Vatika Limited} has formulated a Risk Management Policy to assist
the Board in:

» Overseeing and approving the Company's enterprise wide risk management framework; and

» Overseeing that all the risks that the organization faces, such as strategic, financial, market,
liquidity, security, property, IT, legal, regulatory, reputational, and other risks have been identified
and assessed and there is an adequate risk management infrastructure in place capable of
addressing those risks.

The Cempany's management systems, organizational structure, processes, standards, code of
conduct, and behavior together form a System that governs how the Company conducts its business
and manage the associated risks.

Your Company cairies out a periodical exercise to identify various risks involved in the business and
operations of the Company. After identification, such risks are assessed for the degree of risks involved
and steps are taken to mitigate those risks. The objective of such exercise is to mitigate the probable
adverse impact on business operations and thus enhance the competitiveness. The risk assessment
process of the Company defines the risk management approach at all levels across the organization,
including determining the degree of risks and suitable steps to be taken to avoid the probable harm.

Particulars of Contracts or Arrangements with Related Parties

The particulars of confracts or arrangements with related parties referred to in Section 188(1) of the
Companies Act 2013 for the Financial Year 2015-16 in the prescribed format, AOC 2 has been annexed
as Annexure: 2 with the report.




AUDIT COMMITTEE

Composition of the Audit Committee of the Company is in accordance with Section 177 of the Act,
comprising Mr. Manu Raj Singh-Independent Director, Mr Vineet Taing-Independent Director and. Mr
Gautarn Bhalla-Managing Director.

During F.Y. 2015-16 Five {5) meetings of the Committee of Vatika Limited were held.

The Board has accepted all the recommendations made by the Audit Committee.

VIGIL MECHANISM

The Company (Vatika Limited) has adopted a Vigil Mechanism Policy that has been communicated to
all the Directors and employees of the Company through Vconnect portal. The Company is committed
to have highest possible {ransparency in its operations. The objective of the Company's Policy is to
allow employees an avenue to raise concerns, in line with Vatika's commitments to the highest possible
standards of ethical, moral, and legal business conduct and its commitment to open communications.
Employees can, on a confidential basis, report such matters to ombudsman which may lead to incorrect
financial reporting, or of serious nature, unlawful, not in line with the Code of Conduct of the Company,
or amounts {o improper conduct. The Policy provides complete confidentiality and safeguard of the
employees who raises the issue against any improper conduct,

ANNUAL RETURN

Asg per the requirements of Section 92(3) of the Act and Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014, an extract of Annual Relurn in Ferm MGT-9 is attached to this Report

Auditors and Auditors Report

Statutory Auditors

M/s Walker Chandoik & Co. LLP Charered Accountants, New Delhi (Firm Regd No. 001076N) were
appointed as statutory auditors of the Company in the Seventeenth Annual General Meeting till the
Twenty One Annual General Meeting of the Company subject to the ratification at general meeting by
members. They have confirmed their eligibility for ratification pursuant to section 139 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and are not disqualified for re-appointment.

The Notes on financial statement referred to in the Auditors Report are self-explanatory and do not call
for any further comments. The Auditers Reporl does not contain any qualification, reservation or

adverse remark.

During the year under review, the Statutory Auditors have not reporied any matfer under Section
143(12) of the Act, and therefore no details are required to be disclosed under Section 134 (3)(ca) of
the Act.

Cost Auditors

As per the appiicable provisions, Gurvinder Chopra & Ce. Cost Accountants had been appointed as the
Cost Auditors of the Company for the FY 2015-16.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 M/s. Gurvinder Chopra & Co.
Cost Accountants (firm registraiion no. 100260), have been re-appointed as Cost Auditors of the
Company (Vatika Limited) for FY 2016-17.

Secretarial Audit

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act and The Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed M/s Nitin Gupta &
Associates, Company Secretaries in practice to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for F.Y.
2015-16. The Report of the Secretarial Audit in MR-3 is annexed herewith as Anj ]

The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any qualifications, reservation or adverse remarks.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee

Your Company’s overarching aspiration to create significant and sustainable societal value, inspired by
a vision to sub-serve a larger national purpose and abide by the strong value of trusteeship, is
manifested in its CSR initiatives that embrace the most disadvantaged sections of society, especially in
rural India. The CSR initiatives undertaken by the Company includes imparting primary high quality
education to out-of-school under privileged girls, imparting computer educations to underprivileged
children and building inteilect and instill higher values life through education. In terms of the
provisions of Section 135 of the Act, and the Companies (Cbrporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014,
Z,/




as amended the details of the CSR Projects undertaken by the Company during the year are detailed
6. Your Company has devised proper system to monitor the CSR activilies as per its CSR

The CSR Committee comprises of Mr. Anil Bhalla, Mr. Gautam Bhalla and Mr. Vineet Taing.

During the year, the Company has spent Rs 135.41 Lakhs (2% of the average net profits of last three
financial years) on CSR activities.

During the financial year 2015-16 Four {4) meetings of the Committee of Valika Limited were held.

The Annual Report on CSR activities is annexed herewith as Annexure’ 6 covering the policy
developed & implemented by the Company on CSR initiatives taken during the year.

Borrowing and Investment Committee

The Borrowing and Investment Committee comprises of Mr. Anil Bhalla and Mr. Gautam Bhalla as
members. During the financial year 2015-16, Twenty Three (23) Meetings of the Committee were held.

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

A. Conservation of energy:
a) the Company is not engaged in any manufacturing activity and hence, no

reporting on the conservation of energy is required;

b} further, the company has not made any additional investment and there are no
existing proposals for reduction of energy consumption for reasens mentioned in point (a);
c) for reasons mentioned in peint {a), impact of energy conservation measures
cannot be ascertained;

d) disclosures on total energy consumption and energy consumption per unit of
production cannot be made as company is not engaged in any manufacturing activity.

B. Technology absorption:

(a) . the Company has not entered inlo any agreement for technology absorption.
Hence, reporting on the same cannot be made.

C. Foreign exchange earnings and outgo:
a) during the period under review, there were no activities relating to expors,
b} The Foreign exchange earnings and outgo (FOB basis) of the Company is as
follows:
(Figures in lakhs
Particulars Current Year
(2015-2016)
Earnings 7934.33
Oulgo* 2670.05

*Expenditures in foreign exchange are on accrual basis.

SIGNIFICANT DEVELOPMENTS AFTER THE CLOSE OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR

Except the events disclosed elsewhere in the Annual Report, no significant change or devetopment that
could affect the Company’s financial position has occurred between the end of the financial year and

the date of this Report.
SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY ANY REGULATORS OR COURT

There is no significant material order passed by any regulator or court that would impact the going
concern status or future business operations of the Company.

LY,




APPRECIATION

Your Directors wish to place on record their sincere appreciation for the contribufions made by the
Company's employees at all level. The Board also thanks its members, customers, vendors,

government banks and all other business associates for their cotinuous support.

For and on heha]f of the Board of Directors of

Date: 29.09.2016
Place: Gurgaon

Address : Farm No 4,
Hyde Park, Sultanpur,
Mehrauli,

New Delhi - 110030

Vatika Limited

Manajging Director
DIN: 20005043
ddfess: Farm No 4,
e Park, Sultanpur,
Mehrauli, New Delhi -
110030
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Walker Chandick & Co LLP
(Formerly Walker, Chandiok & Co)
21st Floor, DLF Square
Jacaranda Marg, DLF Phase Il
CGurgaon 122002

India

To the Members of Vatika Limited

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Vatika Limited
(“the Company™), which comptise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2016, the Statement of
Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of the
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

2.

The Company’s Board of Ditrectors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone
financial statements, that give a true and fair view of the financial posttion, financial
performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, ncluding the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as
amended). This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act; éafeguardmg the assets of the Company;
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial

. controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the

accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone
financial statéments that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3.

Chartered Accountanis

Offices in Bengatare, Chandigarh, Chennai, Gurgaen, Hyderabad, Kochi, Kelkata, Mumbai, New Defhi, Noida and Pune

Our tesponsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone financial statements
hased on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing
standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the

provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted out, audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under

. Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical

requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain teasonable assurance about
whether the standalone financial statements are free from material misstatement.

Walker Chandick & Co LLP is registered with limited liahility
with identification number AAC-2085 and its registerad
office ai L-41 Connaught Circus, New Delhi, 110001, India

T +91 124 462 8000
F +91 124 462 3001
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and the disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditot’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making theose risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal financial controls relevant to the Company’s preparation of
the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are apptoptiate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting
estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Opinion

8.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by
the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as
at 31 March 2016, its loss and its cash fows for the vear ended on that date.

Emphasis of Matter

9.

We draw attention to Note 31(d) to the standalone financial statements which describes
the uncertainty relating to the outcome of certain income tax rclated matters pending in
litigation with courts/appellate authorities. Pending the final outcome of these mattets,
which is presently unascertainable, no adjustmments have been made in the standalone
financial statements. Qur opinion is ot modified in respect of these mattets,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

10.

11.

Chartered Accountants

As required by the Companies {(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the
Annexure A a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Otder.

Further to our comments in Annexure A, as required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report
that:

a.  we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of cur knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b. in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

c. the standalone financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the
books of account;

in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended);

on the basis of the written representations recerved from the directors and taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
31 March 2016 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164{2) of the
Act;
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f.  we have also audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting IFCoFR) of
the Company as of 31 March 2016 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date and our report
dated 29 September 2016 as per Annexure B expressed an unqualified opinion; and

g.  with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i as detailed in Note 31(b} to 31{f) to the standalone financial statements, the
Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its standalone financial
position;

ii. the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

ifi. there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLJPP
(Formerly Walker, Chandiok & Co)
"Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

" per Ashish Gupta
Partner
Membership No.: 504662

Place: Gurgaon
Date: 29 September 2016

Chartered Accouniants
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the membets of Vatika
Limited, on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016

Annexure A

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the
standalone financial statements of the Company and taking into consideration the taformation
and explanations given to us and the books of account and other records examined by us in the
normal course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we report that:

1)

()

Chartered Accountants

(a) T'he Company has maintained proper records showing full particulats, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year
and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion,
the frequency of verification of the fixed assets is reasonable having regard to
the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

(c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties (which are included under the
head ‘fixed assets”) are not in the name of the Company. The details in respect
such immovable properties are as under:-

Nature of | Total Whether Gross block Net block as Remarks
property | Number | leasehold/ | ason 31 on 31 March
of Cases | frechold Maech 2016 2816
(Rs. in lacs) | (Rs. in lacs)
Buiidings 1 Freehold 509.26 221.98 | Pertaining
to First
India Place

Further, properties which were transferred as a result of amalgamation of companies in
earlier years wherein the tittle deeds are in the nzme of the erstwhile company, is as

ander:

Nature of
property

Total
Number
of Cases

Whether
leasehold/
freehold

Gross block
as on 31
Maech 2016
{Rs. in lacs)

Net block as
on 31 Match
2016

(Rs. in Jacs)

Remarks

Land

Freehold

293.88

293.88

Pertaining to
land of
Matrikiran
Primary
School

Building

Frechold

2,569.92

2,000.18

Pertaining to
Matrikiran
Primary
School and
Vatika

Tower

In our opinion, the management has conducted physical verification of inventoty
at reasonable intervals during the year, except for inventory represented by
development rights. Fot inventory represented by development rights at the year-
end, written confirmations have been obtained by the management. No material
discrepancies wete noted on the aforesaid vertfication.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Repert of even date to the members of Vatika
Limited, on the standaione financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2016

(1i1)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(it}

Chartered Accountanis

The Company has granted both interest bearing and interest free unsecured loans
to companies covered in the register maintained under Section 18% of the Act; -
and with respect to the same:

(a) in our opinion the terms and conditions of grant of such loans are not, prima

Jacte, prejudicial to the company’s interest;

(b} in respect of interest bearing loan - the schedule of repayment of principal and

payment of interest has been stipulated and are not due for repayment/payment
currently. Further in respect of interest free loan - the schedule of repayment of
principal has been stipulated wherein the principal amounts are repayable on
demand and since the repayment of such loans has not been demanded, in our
opinion, repayment of the principal amount is regular; and

(c) there is no overdue amount in respect of loans granted to such companies.

In our opinion, the Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and
186 of the Act in respect of loans, investments, guarantees and secutity.

In out opinion, the Company has complied with the directives issued by the
Reserve Bank of India, the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 and other relevant
provisions of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014
(as amended) as applicable, with regard to the deposits accepted. According to
the information and explanations given to us, no order has been passed by the
Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of
India or any Court or any other Tribunal, in this regard.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company
putsuant to the Rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of
cost recotds under sub-section {1} of Section 148 of the Act in respect of
Company’s products/setvices and are of the opinion that, prima face, the
prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. However, we
have not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to
determine whether they are accurate or complete.

(a) Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance,

income-tax, sales-tax, wealth tax, scrvice tax, duty of customs, duty of excise,
value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as appicable, have not
been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities and there have been
significant delays in a large number of cases. Undisputed amounts payable in
respect thereof, which were outstanding at the year-end for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable are as follows:

Statement of arrears of statutory dues outstanding for mote than six months

Name of the Nature of the Amount | Period to Due Date Date of
statute dues (Rs. in which the Payment
{exciuding lacs) amount
interest) relates
Haryana FExternal 8,724.71 | 2006-07 to | Various dates | Not yet
Development and Development 2015-16 as per agreed | paid
Regulation of Utban | Charges terms of
Areas Act, 1975 license
Haryana Internal 97.75 | 2006-07 to | Various dates | Not yet
Development and Development 2007-08 as per agreed | paid
Regulation of Uthan | Charges terms of
Areas Act, 1975 license
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Vatika
Limited, on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016

Chartered Accountants

(by The dues outstanding in respect of Income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of

customs, duty of cxcise and value added tax on account of any dispute, are as

follows:

Statement of Disputed Dues

MName of Nature of Amount Amount paid Period to Forum where
the statate | dues {Rs. in lacs) | under protest | which the dispute is
(Rs. in lacs) amount pending
relates
Income Tax | Income tax 245 - | Assessment CIT (Appeals)
Act, 1961 Year 1996-97
Income Tax | Income tax 262.25 29041 | Assessment CIT {Appeals)
Act, 1961 Year 2003-04
Income Tax | Income tax 2,621.73 - | Block Honourable
Act, 1961 assegsment High Court at
May 2003 New Delhi
Income Tax | Income tax 8.87 - | Assessment Income Tax
Act, 1961 Year 2006-07 | Appellate
Tribunzl
Income Tax | Income tax 1,258.61 1,296.37 | Assessment CIT {Appeals)
Act, 1961 Year 2006-07
Income Tax | Income tax 1,090.83 263.11 | Assessment Income Tax
Act, 1961 Year 2008-09 | Appellate
Tribunal
Income Tax | Income tax 95.07 108.38 | Assessment Income Tax
Act, 1961 Year 2008-09 | Appellate
Tribunal
Income Tax | Income tax 7,681.28 213.54 | Assessment Income Tax
Act, 1901 Year 2009-10 | Appellate
Tribunal
Income Tax | Income tax 51.97 - | Assessment CIT (Appeals)
Act, 1961 Year 2007-08
Income Tax | Income tax 2,343.41 2,390.28 | Assessment CIT (Appeals)
Act, 1961 Year 2007-08
Income Tax | Income tax 2,184.92 1,422.85 | Assessment CIT (Appeals)
Act, 1961 Year 2008-09
Income Tax | Income tax 2,015.81 904.02 | Assessment CIT (Appeals)
Act, 1961 ' Year 2009-10
Income Tax | Incorme tax 4,243.33 50.00 | Assessment CIT (Appeals)
Act, 1961 Yeat 2010-11
Income Tax | Income tax 1,161.86 - | Assessment CIT (Appeals)
Act, 1961 Year 2013-14
The IFinance | Setvice tax 347.67 7.60) | Financial Year | Customs
Act, 1994 2003-04 to Excise and
2011-12 Service Tax
Appellate
Tribunal, Delhi
The Haryana | Value added 682.52 - | Financial Year | Haryana Tax
Value Added | tax 2008-09 Ttibunal,
Tax Act, Chandigarh

2003
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Vatika
Limited, on the standalone financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2016

(wiil)

(xii)

Charterad Acceountants

MName of Nature of Amount Amount paid Pericd to Forum where
the statute | dues (Rs. in lacs) | under protest | which the dispute is
(Rs. in lacs) amount pending
relates _
The Haryana | Value added 615.78 100.00 | Financial Year | Haryana Tax
Value Added | tax 2009-10 Tribunal,
Tax Act, Chandigarh
2003
The Haryana | Value added 6,243.41 100.00 | Financial Year | Joint Excise
Value Added | tax 2010-11 and Taxation
Tax Act, Comitnissioner
2003 (Appeals),
Harvana
The Haryana | Value added 4.407.67 © 100.00 | Financial Year | Joint Bxcise
Value Added | tax 2011-12 and Taxation
Tax Act, Commissionet
2003 {Appeals),
Haryana
The Haryana | Value added 4,583.70 100.00 | Financial Year | Joint Excise
Value Added | tax 2012-13 and Taxation
Tax Act, Commissioner
2003 (Appeals),
. Hagyana
The Haryana | Value added 2,134.39 100.00 1 Financial Year | Joint Bxcise
Value Added | tax 2013-14 and Taxation
Tax Act, Commissioher
2003 (Appeals),
Hatyana
The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to any

financial institution or a bank ot any dues to debenture-holders during the year.
The Company has no loans or borrowings payable to the government.

Tn our opinion, the term loans were applied for the putpose for which the loans were
obtained. The Company did not raise moneys by way of initial public offer (including
debt instruments).

No fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been
noticed or reported during the period covered by our audit.

The managerial remuneration has been provided and paid by the Company (being a
unlisted public company) in accordance with the requisite approvals and fulfilment of
conditions as mandated by the provisions of Rule 7(2) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Pessonnel) Rules, 2014. Accordingly,
limits specified in the provisions of Section 197 of the Act read with Schedule V to the
Act are not applicable.

In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, provisions of
clause 3(xif) of the Order are not applicable.




Annexute A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Vatika

Limited, on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016

(xctit) In our opinion all transactions with the related partics are in compliance with Sections
177 and 188 of Act, where applicable, and the requisite details have been disclosed in
the standalone financial statements etc., as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

(xiv} During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment ot private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures.

(xv) In our opinion, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with the
directors ot persons connected with them covered under Section 192 of the Act.

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934

For Walkee Chandiok & Co LLP
(Formerly Walker, Chandiok ¢ Co)
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: UU76N/N500013

per Asl hish Gupta .‘
Partner -
Membership No.: 504662

Place: Gurgaon
Date: 29 September 2016

Chartered Accountants
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Vatika Limited,
on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016

Annexure B

Independent Auditor’s report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3
of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of Vatika Limited (“the Company™)
as of and for the year ended 31 March 2016, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial
reporting (“IFCoFR”) of the Company as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over firancial teporting ctitetia established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Repotting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAT”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
ordetly and efficient conduct of the Company’s business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting recotds, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's IFCoFR based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAT and deemed to be prescribed
under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of IFCoFR, and the Guidance Note
issued by the TCAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
IFCoFR wete established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the IFCoFR
and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of IFCoFR included obtaining an understanding of IFCoFR,
asscssing the risk that 2 material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and opetating '
effectiveness of intetnal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the tisks of material misstatement of the standalone
financial statements, whether due to fraud or errot.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s IFCoFR.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's IFCoFR is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's TFColFR includes. those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of recotds that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authotisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the com ts that could have a material effect on the financial statements,
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Vatika Limited,
on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016

Inhetent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

7. Because of the inherent limitations of IFCoFR, including the possibility of collusion or impropet
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the IFCoFR to future periods are subject to the risk that
IFCoFR may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, ot that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial repotting were operating effectively
as at 31 March 2016, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note tssued by
ICAL

&

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
(Formerly Walker, Chandiok & Co)
Chattered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No001076N/N500013

pet Ashish Gupta
Partner
Membership No.: 504662

Place: Gurgaon
Date: 29 September 2016

Chartered Accountants




Vatilea Limited

Balance Sheet as at 31 barch 2016

(oLt ampotents are in Lnddiegn Ragpees i Js, sinless otherwive specsfied}

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Sharcholders’ funds

Share capiral

Reserves and surplus

Non-currenr Habilities
Long-term borrowings
Orther long-term liabilities

Iong-term provisions

Current liahilities

Short-term borrowings

Trade payables

(A) total cutstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
(B} toral ourstanding dues of creditors ather than micro and small enterprises
Other current liabilities

Short-term provisions

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Mixed asscrs
Tangible assets

Intangible assets

Capital work-in-progress
Non-current investments
Deeferred tax assets {net)
Long-term foans and advances

Orther hon-current asscts

Current assets

Clurrent investments

Tnventories

Trade receivables

Cash and bank balances

Short-term loans and advances

Other current asscts

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these fnancial statements.

‘I'his is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.
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(formerly Watker, Chandiok & (‘a)/’
Charrered Account s
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por Ashish Gupta

Partner

Place: Gurgaon

Date: 29 September 2016
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Note
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9a)
9(b)
10

14(2)

116

11¢b)
12
13
14
15

16
17
18
19
20
21

Manbging Dircctor

DTNi Q0005043

31 March 2016 31 March 2015
5,508.82 5,568.82
98,076.63 98,915.55
103,645.45 104,484.37
110,778.43 162,522 85
119.57 26017
1,413.84 618.02
112,311.84 163,401.04
158,758.51 160,998 41
21,797.54 22,956.32
471,991.56 318,193.35
18,307.52 18,200.68
670,849.13 520,348.76
8806,806.42 788,234.17
3,166.85 3,501.31
6.75 12.90
6,277.25 2,718.74
33,845.61 42,863.90
2,351.99 3,122.62
34.334.09 32,822.06
4,975.24 4,979.15
84,957.78 90,020.68
- 7.701.86
354,809.71 300,077.97
24 588,33 35,317.30
10,121.68 1522541
320,370.59 219,466.67
91,058.33 111,424.28
$01,848.64 698,213.49
886,806.42 788,234,17

% Kumar Sahni
Chief Financial Qfficer

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Gaurav Bhalia
Director
DIN: 000050660

Gaurav Arora

Company Secretary

Membership No.: F6350
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Vatika Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2016
(AL anronnts are in Ludian Rapees in lacs, anless othermise specified)

Income:
Revenue from operations

(ther income

Total revenue

Expenses:

Cost of sales

Employee benefits expensce

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortization expensc

Other expenses
Total expenses

Profit before tax

Tax cxpense/{credit) :
- Current tax
- MAT eredit entitlement
- Deferred tax
- Income tax earlicr years
- Deferred tax catlicr years

Total tax expense
(Loss)/profit for the year
{Loss)/earnings per share (Rs.)

- Basic (oss)/earnings per share
- Diluted (loss)/ carnings per share

MNote

[SER ]
e

24
25
26
11{2)&(b)
27

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial starements.

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our teport of even dare.
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For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
(farmerty W alker, Chandiok & Ca)

Chartered Accountants
£
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per Ashish Gupta

i

Partner

Place: Gurgaon
Date: 29 September 2016

Raj Kftmar Saf m
Chicf Financial Officer

3 March 2016 31 March 2015
66,797.09 110,994.54
32,384.03 3,281.78
99,181.12 114,276.32
45,030.09 65,703.75

1,633.00 1,947.47
47,305.35 32,070.99
366.31 447 81
4,369.97 10,530.75
98,704.72 110,700.77
476.40 3,575.55
544.69 1,576.12
(394.53)

(331.78) 187.56
129.24
1,102.41 ;

1,315.32 1,498.30
(838.92) 2,077.16

(1.66) 411

(1.66) 4.11

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Gaurav Bhalla
Director
DIN: 00005060

LA Qi éj‘i‘”
Caurav Arora
Company Secretary
Membership No.: F6350




Vatika Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2016

(=l amonnis are in Tneian Rapees in lacs, unless otherwise specified)

31 March 2016 31 March 2015
Cash flows from operating activities
Net profit before tax 476.40 3,575.55
Adjustments for :
Depreciation and amortization 360.31 447.81
Finance costs 47,305.35 32,070.99
Provision for expected costs 2,523.48 2.45
Provision for doubtful debts/advances 308.97 2.,400.00
Advances written off 0.80 4.89
Provision for diminution of investments 247 -
Claims and contingencies 783.37 227.16
Rent equalisation reserve (20.67) (67.35)
Interest income {3.563.62) {882.006)
Loss/ (profit) on sale of fixed assets (net) 0.08 {(2.12)
Provision for wealth tax - reversal {0.56) {0.01)
Profit on sale of investments (net) {25,633.51) {41.56)
Profit on redemption of debentures {(1,914.13) -
Amounts written back (380.00) {116.98)
Operating profit before working capital changes 20,254.74 37,618.71
Drecrease/ (increase) in trade receivables 10,420.00 (26,582.21)
Increase in loans and advances (90,371.72) (13,458.70)
Decrease in other current assets 19,641.65 9,982.51
Increase in inventoties (45,731.75) (32,515.75)
Increase/ {decrease) in liabilides and provisions (17,395.07) {9,800.78)
Decrease/ (increase) in investments in deposits with banks under lien 321.29 (514.77)
Cash flow used in operations (102,860.86) (35,270.99)
Taxes paid (net of refunds) {1,766.16) (2,476.59)
Net cash used in operating activities - (A) (104,627.02) (37,747.58)
Cash flow from investing activities
Purchasc of fixed assets and capital work in progress (3,646.07) (1,923.51)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets - 13.44
Loans given duting the vear (10,410.00; -
loans recetved back during the year 596.21 -
Investments made during the year - {26,679.53)
Investments sold during the year 44,265.30 1,818.42
Investments in bank deposits (having origital maturity of more than twelve months) 14.00 61.00
Interest received 1,780.10 1,046.90
Net cash flow from/ (used in) investing activities - (B) 32,599.54 (25,663.28)
Cash flow from financing activities
Repayments/proceeds of short teem borrowings (net) (2,647.38) 5,641.74
Proceeds from long term borrowings 458,382.14 320,553.81
Repayments of long term borrowings {344,448.09) (225,193.35)
Interest paid (45,639.17) {32,118.32)
Net cash flow from financing activities - (C) 65,647 .50 68,883.88
Net {decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) {6,379.98) 5,473.02
j e ZELE %f;é%/
£




Vatika Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2016

{14 commoninty ave in Dndian Rapees in lacs, wnless ofbernise specified)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year (refer note 19)

This is the Cash Flow Statement referted to in our teport of even date.

{formerty Walker, Chandiok & Co)
Chartered Accountants

per Ashish Gupta

Partnes

Place: Gurgaon
Date: 29 September 2016

/ Gautam Bhalla
;{ Managing Director

\\Djr; 00005043

Raj Kumar Sabni
Chief Financial Officer

3% March 2016 31 March 2015
12,534.37 7,061.35
6,154.39 12,534.37
(6,379.98) 5,473.02

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Gaurav Bhalla
Director
DIN: 00005060

i,f;’;ﬁw%f é/"e‘*‘v '
Gaurav Arora
Company Secretary
Membership No.: F6350




